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I. BY THE COMMISSION

A. Factual and Procedural Background

1. This matter comes before the Commission on late-filed Objections by Monument Limousine Service, LLC (Monument) to the Recommended Decision of the administrative law judge (ALJ) in this matter.
  Monument filed those Objections April 15, 2005, after the Commission granted Monument an extension of time to file, to and including April 13, 2005.  Monument asserts that it filed its Objections on April 13, 2005, by depositing them in the U.S. Mail, certified delivery.  However, in accordance with the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-1-7(a):

Timeliness of Filing.  Pleadings, requests, or other papers or documents must be received for filing at the Commission’s offices in Denver, Colorado, within the time limits, if any, for filing, during normal business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday).  The date and time of Commission receipt, and not the date of deposit in the mail, governs.

2. Monument is represented in this matter by its president, Mr. Alex Malone.  Mr. Malone is not an attorney, but was given leave to represent Monument here by the ALJ, in Decision No. R04-1554-I.

3. In view of the fact that Mr. Malone is not an attorney, the Commission will construe Monument’s late-filed Objections as an application for rehearing, reargument, and reconsideration of the Recommended Decision under Rule 4 CCR 723-1-92(b)(2).

4. On April 29, 2005, Staff of the Commission (Staff) filed its Response to Monument Limousine Service’s Objection, In Part, to the Recommended Decision (Staff’s Response).  Because we have construed Monument’s Objections as an application for rehearing, reargument, and reconsideration, Rule 4 CCR 723-1-22(b) applies, and no response is allowed.  Staff’s Response to the application for rehearing, reargument, and reconsideration is therefore not permitted, and the Commission will not consider it here.  Similarly, Monument’s reply to Staff’s Response, filed by Monument on May 11, 2005, will not be considered here.

5. On September 2, 2004, Staff issued Civil Penalty Assessment Notice No. 71173 to Monument, asserting 25 violations of 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 395.8(a), failure to maintain proper duty status logs; and four violations of 49 CFR 396.3(b)(2), failure to maintain proper vehicle inspection logs.  If these violations were all proven, the maximum penalty for them would have been $5,800.

6. Monument admitted to seven violations of section 395.8(a) and paid a $700 penalty for them.  This left 18 alleged violations of section 395.8(a), and 4 violations of section 396.3(b)(2), to be addressed by the ALJ.

7. Hearing was held on February 8, 2005.  On March 17, 2005, the ALJ issued her Recommended Decision (R05-0311), finding Monument liable for all 18 of the remaining alleged violations of section 395.8(a), and dismissing with prejudice all 4 of the alleged violations of section 396.3(b)(2).  The ALJ imposed a fine in the amount of $3,000.  The maximum fine would have been $3,600.

B. Discussion

8. In its Objections to the Recommended Decision, Monument does not contest the factual basis for the findings of liability, but instead argues that the underlying rules, found at 49 CFR 395.8, have been declared invalid by the D.C. Court of Appeals, in Public Citizen, et al., v. Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration, 374 F.3d 1209 (D.C. Cir., 2004) (Public Citizen).  As a result, Monument asserts, the Commission here has no rules to enforce with respect to maintenance of duty status logs, and the complaint against Monument must be dismissed.

9. The federal rules requiring commercial drivers to maintain logs relating to their hours of service and duty status are found at 49 CFR 395.8, and were incorporated by reference into the Colorado Commission’s own rules, at Rule 4 CCR 723-15-2.1, which states:

Except as otherwise provided in these rules, the Commission incorporates by reference the regulations published in…Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 40, 382, 383, 390, 391, 392, 393, 395, 396, and 399…revised as of October 1, 1998.  No later amendments to or editions of the Code of Federal Regulations are incorporated in these rules.

10. Thus, the version of the federal rules actually incorporated into the Colorado rules was, and is, the October 1, 1998 version, and no later.

11. The rules at issue in the Public Citizen case, however, were promulgated in April, 2003, as the result of a notice of proposed rulemaking issued in May, 2000.
  The agency promulgating those rules, the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA) was created by statute in 1999.
  These new rules would have radically altered the allowable hours of service for long-haul truckers, which had been in place since 1962.  Among other things, the rules promulgated in April, 2003—and struck down by the Court of Appeals in Public Citizen—would have increased the number of hours truckers could work per week.  The Court of Appeals struck them down because the agency “neglected to consider a statutorily mandated factor—the impact of the rule on the health of drivers.”

12. Throughout the Public Citizen case, the Court of Appeals draws a distinction between the old rules, and the final rule promulgated in 2003.  From the outset, Judge Sentelle makes it clear that this case involves:

[R]eview of a final rule of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (“FMCSA” or “the agency”) revising existing hours of service (“HOS”) regulations limiting the hours of driving and work of commercial motor vehicle operators.  For the reasons more fully set out below, we agree with petitioners that the rulemaking was arbitrary and capricious, because the FMCSA failed to take account of a statutory limit on its authority.  We therefore grant the petition for review and vacate the rule.

13. The Commission did not incorporate the 2003 version of these rules into the Code of Colorado Regulations.  Quite the contrary, the rules state that:  “No later amendments to or editions of the Code of Federal Regulations are incorporated in these rules.”  Thus, the Commission expressly excluded this 2003 version of the federal rules from its own.

14. In addition, the Public Citizen case does not appear to vacate the FMCSA’s rules retroactively to 1998.  Instead, it merely affects the final rule promulgated in 2003.

15. As a result, nothing contained in the Public Citizen case affects the validity of the Commission’s use of the 1998 version of the federal rules, which had been in effect for more than 35 years and incorporated by reference into the Colorado Commission’s rules.

16. The ALJ to whom this docket was assigned had occasion to rule on this very issue when Monument filed a Motion for Dismissal by Directed Verdict, December 1, 2004.  In her interim order, Decision No. R04-1555-I, the ALJ found:

[T]he Public Citizen decision has no impact on the present case because that decision did not affect in any way the 1998 version of 49 CFR § 395.8(a) which the Commission incorporated by reference into the Safety Rules.  As Respondent is charged with 25 violations of the version of 49 CFR § 395.8(a) incorporated by reference into the Safety Rules, and as the decision in Public Citizen vacated a subsequent version of 49 CFR § 395.8(a), there was no need for the Commission to promulgate emergency rules following the Public Citizen decision because the Commission’s Safety Rules were unaffected.  Because the Motion rests solely on the assertion that the Public Citizen decision deprived the Commission of jurisdiction and because the ALJ finds that not to be the case, the Motion will be denied.

17. The Commission concurs with the ALJ’s analysis of this issue.  Monument’s argument here, that the Public Citizen decision had the force and effect of striking down the Colorado Commission’s rules relating to the maintenance of duty status logs, is without merit.  The recommended decision of the ALJ in this matter, Decision No. R05-0311, is sustained.  Monument’s objection, construed as an application for rehearing, reargument, and reconsideration, is denied.

II. ORDER

A. The Commission Orders That:

1. Monument Limousine Service’s Objection, In Part, to the Recommended Decision of the Administrative Law Judge, construed as an application for rehearing, reargument, and reconsideration of Decision No. R05-0311, is denied.

2. This Order is effective upon its Mailed Date.

B. ADOPTED IN COMMISSIONERS’ WEEKLY MEETING
May 17, 2005.
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�  Monument’s objections are denominated “Monument Limousine Service’s Objection, In Part, to the Recommended Decision of the Administrative Law Judge” (Objections).  The Recommended Decision of the ALJ is Decision No. R05-0311.


�  Monument’s reply to Staff’s Response is denominated “Respondent’s Reply:  Staff Counsel Response to Motion of Objection, In Part.”


�  Public Citizen, supra, 374 F.3d at 1211, 1215.


�  Id., 374 F.3d at 1211.


�  374 F.3d at 1216 (“We hold that the final rule is arbitrary and capricious because the agency neglected to consider a statutorily mandated factor—the impact of the rule on the health of drivers.”)


�  374 F.3d at 1210.  (Emphasis added.)


�  The Court of Appeals’ ruling does, however, vacate the final rule “in its entirety.”  374 F.3d at 1223.


�  Colorado Public Utilities Commission v. Monument Limousine Service, LLC, Docket No. 04G-458EC, Decision No. R04-1555-I.  See also Decision No. R05-0113-I, on reconsideration of the previous interim order.
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